
 
SHAREHOLDER CABINET COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY 11 SEPTEMBER 2023 
10.00 AM 
 
Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 

 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 12 June 2023 
 

3 - 6 

4. Exclusion of the Public and Press 
 

 

 To resolve that the press and public may be excluded from the meeting on Item 6, 
‘Peterborough Limited Update’ on the grounds that the item contains an exempt 
appendix which includes information under Paragraph 3 of Part 1 Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, and that it would not be in the public 
interest for this information to be disclosed (relating to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person). 

 

 

5. Medesham Homes 
 

7 - 32 

6. Peterborough Limited Update 
 

33 - 54 

7. Shareholder Cabinet Committee workprogramme 
 

55 - 56 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

1



Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 

 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.   The duty Beadle will assume 

overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair. 

 
Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take photographs and use 
social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is 

available at:  
 
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recor
ding&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact Dan 
Kalley on 01733 296334 as soon as possible. 
 

 
 
 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: Allen (Chair), Ayres, M Cereste, Coles (Vice Chairman) and Simons 
 

Substitutes: 
 

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from  on telephone 01733 296334 or by 
email – daniel.kalley@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take 
photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the 
public. A protocol on this facility is available at: 
 
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recor
ding&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385   
 

2

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385


 
 

MINUTES OF THE SHAREHOLDER CABINET COMMITTEE MEETING  
HELD AT 10:00PM ON 

MONDAY 12 JUNE 2023 

BOURGES/VIERSEN ROOM, TOWN HALL 
 

Members Present: Councillors Steve Allen (Chair), Councillor Jackie Allen, Councillor 

Cereste, Councillor Coles, Councillor Simons 
 

1. Apologies for Absence 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Ayres. Councilor Jackie Allen was 
in attendance as substitute, in an advisory capacity.  

 
2. Declarations of Interest 
 

 There were no declarations of interest received. 
 
3. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 7 November 2022 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 7 November 2022 were noted as a true and accurate 
record. 

 
4. Additional Equity Investment into Peterborough HE Property Company Ltd for 

Phase 3 of the University 
 

The Shareholder Cabinet Committee received a report in relation to additional equity 
investment into Peterborough HE Property Company Ltd for phase 3 of the University.  
 

The purpose of this report was to seek recommendation to Cabinet for an investment of 
an additional £1.3m equity into the Peterborough HE Property Company Ltd (known as 
PropCo1) to contribute towards additional construction costs on the University of 
Peterborough Phase 3 Living Lab project. 
 
The Executive Director for Place and Economy introduced the report and provided an 
overview of the key points. 
  
The Shareholder Cabinet Committee debated the report and in summary responses to 
questions raised included: 
 

 In relation to risk management, it was advised that the ‘red’ risk indicated within 
the report was solely due to the financial aspect of the project. All other indicators 
were at a low or medium level. Officers were confident that the project continued 
to be very achievable.  

 It was suggested that the additional equity figure may end up being around £1 
million, though £1.3 million was being asked for to ensure that the process would 
not have to be repeated further down the line.  

 It was noted that the reduction in development cost came mainly from materials, 
with the largest saving that of cladding. Members were assured that this cladding 
would aesthetically match the previous phases of development and, while it was 
a cheaper product, adhered to all the necessary safety standards.  

3



 Comment was made that the long-time environmental impact of the building 
remained a key consideration and was fully considered by the board when 
reviewing cost-saving measures. 

 
Shareholder Cabinet Committee considered the report and RESOLVED to 

recommend that Cabinet: 
 

1. Approves an additional investment of 1,300,000 Ordinary Shares (to the value 
of £1 per share) into Peterborough HE Property Company Ltd, to enable phase 
3 of the University development to proceed.  
 

2. Provide delegated authority to the Executive Director for Place and Economy, 
in consultation with the Executive Director for Resources, to agree final 
versions of the subscription letter and the funding profile to be included in the 
shareholder’s agreement with Peterborough HE Property Company Ltd. 

 
REASONS FOR THE DECISION  

 
The decision was designed to ensure Shareholder Cabinet Committee had sufficient 
information to enable it to make a recommendation to Cabinet. 
 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED  
 

These were described in section 4 of the report. 
 

5. Peterborough Investment Partnership 2022/2023 
 

The Shareholder Cabinet Committee received a report in relation to the Peterborough 
Investment Partnership (PIP) for 2022/2023. 
 

The purpose of this report was to provide a brief annual review of the activities of the 
Peterborough Investment Partnership up to and including the period 2022/2023. 
 
The Executive Director for Place and Economy introduced the report and provided an 
overview of the key points. The Head of Economic Growth and Development was also 
in attendance to respond to any questions.  
  
The Shareholder Cabinet Committee debated the report and in summary responses to 
questions raised included: 
 

 Concern was raised over the implications for the future of Pleasure Fair 

Meadows Car Park should the PIP be dissolved. Members were advised that the 

site had been sold to Medesham Homes and a range of options were still being 

considered for the location.  

 Members highlighted the possibility of the site being used for house, leisure 

facilities and student accommodation, as well as continued car parking.  

 It was advised that the equity held by the PIP was mostly in cash, with a small 

value held in land.  

 Comment was made that Pleasure Fair Meadows had previously experienced 

issues with anti-social behaviour and car cruising, and so any future plans should 

take this into account and form part of preventative measures.  

 Members were informed that work was soon to begin on the development of a 

city centre transport vision, which would protect adequate car parking for the city.  

4



 It was considered that future special purpose vehicles (SPVs) were unlikely with 

the PIP, but not impossible. SPVs with other developers would be an option for 

future projects. It was noted that the Council now had a fit-for-purpose growth 

and regeneration function and so it’s need for SPVs had shifted.  

 Comment was made in relation to the protentional for working with PIP following 

its work with Cambridgeshire University around social care and sustainable 

farming, which were being watched with interest.  

 
Shareholder Cabinet Committee considered the report and RESOLVED to: 
 

1. Note the contents of the report for 2022/2023. 
2. Note the company activity for 2022/2023. 

 
REASONS FOR THE DECISION  

 
The decision was designed to allow the Shareholder Cabinet Committee to review the 
status and activities of PIP LLP and assure itself that the Council was fulfilling its role in 
the company appropriately. 
 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED  
 

Not applicable, as this report was for information only. 
 

6. Assurance of PCC Companies 
 

The Shareholder Cabinet Committee received a report in relation to the assurance of 
Peterborough City Council companies. 
 

The purpose of this report was to review the remit and powers of the Committee, set out 
arrangements for oversight of Council companies, and endorse training proposals for 
Members and officers.  
 
The Director of Law and Governance introduced the report and provided an overview of 
the key points. The Service Director for Corporate Finance was also in attendance to 
respond to any questions. 
  
The Shareholder Cabinet Committee debated the report and in summary responses to 
questions raised included: 
 

 Members questioned whether the committee members should be briefed prior to 
the officer Companies Unit. It was indicated that this was not the proposed 
process, as the unit would feed into the committee, however, committee 
members could be briefed beforehand if they wished.  

 In relation to the Member training for those with directorship positions on Council 
companies, it was advised that further detail would be forthcoming. 

 External training would be provided by a local authority law firm who specialised 
in the running of local authority companies.  

 It was noted that lead officers were to be appointed for each company, who has 
experience, to be a direct point of contact and to take on the role of company 
secretary.  

 It was further considered that training needed to cover the role of Members to 
think strategically about the future of their company and to understand how 
companies were run.  

 
Shareholder Cabinet Committee considered the report and RESOLVED to: 

5



 
1. Note the revised Terms of Reference for the Shareholder Cabinet Committee 
2. Note the Companies Unit and its Terms of Reference 
3. Note the lead officer role and role description 
4. Agrees training programme, for members and officers involved in council 

companies and partnerships, to be organised by the Monitoring Officer 
 
REASONS FOR THE DECISION  

 
To outline arrangements for the Shareholder Cabinet Committee and central oversight 
of all Council companies.  
 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED  
 
None. 
 

7. Shareholder Cabinet Committee Work Programme 

 
 The Shareholder Cabinet Committee received the Shareholder Cabinet Committee work 

programme for the 2023/2024 municipal year. 
 
Members were advised that the previously mentioned ‘Guidance for Members and Officers 

who Service on Outside Bodies’ document, programmed to be discussed at this 
meeting, would instead be addressed via a training programme.  

 
 The Shareholder Cabinet Committee considered the report and RESOLVED to note the 

latest version of the work programme. 
 

Chairman 
10:00am – 10:47am 

12 June 2023 

6



 

 
SHAREHOLDER CABINET COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 5 

11 SEPTEMBER 2023 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Report of: Adrian Chapman, Executive Director – Place and Economy 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Cllr Steve Allen, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Communities 

Contact Officer(s): Adrian Chapman, Executive Director, Place and Economy Tel. 07952 
096424 

 

MEDESHAM HOMES 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

FROM: Executive Director for Place and Economy Deadline date: N/A 
 

 
It is recommended that Shareholder Cabinet Committee: 
 
1. Notes the progress made to date by Medesham Homes;  

2. Provides comments and/or recommendations on the future of the joint venture. 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

 
1.1 This report is submitted to Shareholder Cabinet Committee following a request from the 

Committee members.  
 

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT  
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an overview of the most recent activity of Medesham 
Homes and to set out the forthcoming areas of focus.  

 
2.2 This report is for the Shareholder Cabinet Committee to consider under its Terms of Reference 

No. 3.3.2 (a) 
 
To monitor performance of the companies, partnerships, and charities in line with Cabinet 
approved business plans and particular the company’s performance:  
 

(a) in financial matters  
(b) against the social goals of the company as set out in the company’s Objects. Business Case 
or Business Plan; and against the values of the Council by means of monthly performance 
monitoring and scrutiny. 
 

3. TIMESCALES 
  

Is this a Major Policy 

Item/Statutory Plan? 

NO If yes, date for 

Cabinet meeting  

N/A 

 

4. BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 

4.1 Medesham Homes is a Limited Liability Partnership created in the 2016/17 financial year, 
established as a 50:50 joint venture controlled by the Council and Cross Keys Homes 
Developments Ltd. Each party holds one A share. Medesham Limited (whose shareholders are 

7



CKHDL and the Council) holds one B share. The joint venture is led by a small board, who are 
supported by advisers from both organisations. For the council, the Shareholder Cabinet 
Committee has responsibility for oversight of Medesham Homes’ activities. 
 

4.2 The joint venture was established in order to create a mechanism for implementing 
recommendations from a cross party task and finish group which was established to consider 
changes to the council’s strategy with regards to housing in Peterborough. Its primary purpose is 
to develop land and construct affordable homes via the acquisition and development of sites for 
affordable rent in Peterborough. It was established to acquire sites that may be undesirable to 
other developers, including brownfield sites within the city such as disused office blocks. 
 

4.3 Under the terms of the current Members’ Agreement, the objectives of the joint venture are as 

follows: 

 

i.Delivering affordable rented housing; 

ii.Investigating further opportunities for starter homes, shared equity, market sale, private rented, 

student accommodation and housing solutions for vulnerable groups including, but not limited 

to, the elderly and disabled; 

iii.Generating economic growth and new employment opportunities particularly for local residents; 

iv.Addressing local housing needs and requirements with a particular focus on providing suitable 

housing for older, disabled, and overcrowded households; 

v. Creating, through development and regeneration, a strong and coherent sense of place where 

local residents want to live, now and in the future; 

vi.Providing Cross Keys Homes and the Council with returns that are commensurate with their 

investment (to the extent that this complies with the joint venture’s other objectives); 

vii.Exploring other potential development opportunities to further these objectives. 

 

4.4 Although the Members’ Agreement allows for up to three representatives to be appointed to the 

Board by each Member, at present each Member has appointed one representative. 

 

4.5 To date, Medesham Homes schemes have been 100% funded with capital mainly from Right to 

Buy receipts made available by the council, along with some grant funding from the 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined Authority (CPCA). Medesham Homes then retains 

net rentals, which are not borrowed against. Right to Buy receipts have diminished over time, 

although it should be noted that Cross Keys Homes have contributed £2.27m from this source to 

the Council over the past two years.  

 

The table below shows the various schemes either completed by Medesham Homes, or in-scope, 

and their funding source: 

 

Development Right To Buy 

receipt 
£k 

CPCA grant 

 
£k 

Total approved 

funding £k 

Midland Road 

  

3,990 0 3,990 

Belle Vue and Fishpool 
Drive 

4,165 735 4,900 

Crowland Road, Eye 

 

5,325 875 6,200 

Bretton Court (proposed) 
  

4,698 0 4,698 

TOTAL 18,178 1,610 19,788 

 

8



 

 

4.6 Since its inception, Medesham Homes has completed the delivery of 94 affordable homes and 
with the identified approved pipeline this will increase to circa 130 homes. It is also in the process 
of redefining development options for the Bretton Court scheme, which now includes the former 
pub. Medesham Homes also owns the Pleasure Fair Meadow car park, although there are 
currently no plans to develop this. 
 

4.7 In 2022, as part of the broader review of the Council’s joint ventures, CIPFA (Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance and Accountancy) was asked to assess the performance of Medesham Homes 
and to consider options for the council to consider in relation to its future. In summary, CIPFA 
identified key issues for consideration in determining the future of the joint venture, including 
ensuring improved value for money is achieved for the Council, and the need to ensure the key 
enabling functions – such as planning and highways – are more responsive. It is helpful to note 
that a full review and transformation of the planning service has recently been completed, and a 
review of our highways service is underway. CIPFA noted that Medesham’s contribution (as 
shown in section 4.6) should be able to be accelerated with the right level of support from both 
partners, whilst recognising that Medesham has only a small staff establishment (one part time 
member of staff). 
 

4.8 Both the council and Cross Keys Homes are aware that the future of Medesham Homes needs 
to be determined. At its most recent board meeting, representatives discussed the potential focus 
of the organisation moving forwards, and concluded that, if it were to continue, it needed to focus 
on (i) projects that are strategically important to the council, and (ii) those where development is 
not likely to be market-led. Consideration will also need to be given to alternative sources of 
capital investment, including, for example, Homes England funding, as well as investment from 
Cross Keys Homes themselves. 
 

4.9 The annual report and financial statements for Medesham Homes for the year ending 31 March 
2022 are attached at appendix 1. These show: 

 a surplus of c.£434k for the year, compared to a surplus of c.£323k in the previous year; 

 assets of c.£16.5m, including investment properties valued at c.£16m; 

 a cash balance of c.£412k at year end. 
 

5. CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 

5.1 The work of Medesham Homes contributes across the council’s priorities, most notably: 
 
The Economy & Inclusive Growth: 
 By providing affordable homes 

 By providing jobs 

 
Our Places & Communities: 

 By helping to improve the quality of life experienced by residents 

 By contributing the improving the health and wellbeing of residents 
 
Prevention, Independence & Resilience: 

 By ensuring households have access to safe, warm, and affordable housing 
 
Further information on the Council’s Priorities can be found here - Link to Corporate Strategy and 
Priorities Webpage 
 
Carbon Impact Assessment - this report contains no proposals for changes to service delivery 
and therefore there is no decision to take which may impact carbon emissions of the council or 
the city. 
 
 
 

9

https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/council/strategies-policies-and-plans/council-strategies/corporate-strategy
https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/council/strategies-policies-and-plans/council-strategies/corporate-strategy


6. CONSULTATION 
 

6.1 This report has been shared for comment with the council’s appointed Board representative, and 
Cross Keys Homes. It has also been shared with the council’s Corporate Leadership Team, and 
Cabinet Policy Forum. 
 

7. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES OR IMPACT  
 

7.1 This report provides an opportunity for Shareholder Cabinet Committee to consider the work of 
Medesham Homes, and to make comments and recommendations on its future. 
 

8. REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATION 
 

8.1 The recommendations contained in this report ensure that the council is discharging its duty to 
oversee the work of Medesham Homes. 
 

9. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

9.1 Not applicable. 
 

10. IMPLICATIONS 
 

 Financial Implications 
 

10.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report 
 

 Legal Implications 
 

10.2 I have reviewed the relevant sections of The Affordable Housing Act 2021 and can confirm that 
there are no legal implications in respect of this report, its actions, and recommendations. 
 

 Equalities Implications 
 

10.3 This report is largely for information and to enable Shareholder Cabinet Committee to review the 
performance of Medesham Homes and comment on its future. The suggested focus of 
Medesham Homes, if agreed, will mean that affordable housing will be developed on sites not 
likely to be brought forward by other developers. This would result in more affordable homes 
being available to residents from across the city, regardless of their background. 
 

11. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

11.1 None. 
 

12. APPENDICES 
 

12.1 Appendix 1: Medesham Homes LLP Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year 
ended 31 March 2022. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

10

https://www.addleshawgoddard.com/en/insights/insights-briefings/2021/real-estate/the-affordable-housing-act-2021-new-measures/#:~:text=The%20Act%20introduces%20new%20income,balance%20of%20the%20purchase%20price.


11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



 

 
SHAREHOLDER CABINET COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 6 

11 SEPTEMBER 2023 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Report of: Kitran Eastman – Managing Director Peterborough Limited 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Cllr Coles, Cabinet Member for Legal, Finance and Corporate 
Governance  

Contact Officer(s): Kitran Eastman – Managing Director 
Peterborough Limited  

Contact Officer(s): 07917 331321 

 

PETERBOROUGH LIMITED UPDATE 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

FROM: Peterborough Limited Deadline date: N/A  
 
It is recommended that the Shareholder Cabinet Committee: 
 

A. Note the information contained within the Annual Report and the progress made by Peterborough 
Limited (P-Ltd) during the 2022-23 year.  

B. Note the audited Company Accounts. 
C. Request that the P-Ltd Business Plan 2024-2029 be reviewed by the Shareholder Cabinet 

Committee in February 2024.  

 
 

1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

1.1 This report is presented to the Shareholder Cabinet Committee following a request from the 
Committee for an update on Peterborough Limited (P-Ltd) services and performance.  

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to: update the Shareholder Cabinet Committee on key achievements 
and progress against the P-Ltd Business Plan; update on the company status of Peterborough 
Limited (P-Ltd) through its Annual Report; and highlight current and potential future pressures and 
risks facing the company.  

2.2 This report is for Shareholder Cabinet to consider under its Terms of Reference No. 3.3.2(a): 
 
To monitor performance of the companies, partnerships, and charities in line with Cabinet 
approved business plans and particular the company’s performance:  
 
(a) in financial matters  
(b) against the social goals of the company as set out in the company’s Objects. Business Case 
or Business Plan; and against the values of the Council by means of monthly performance 

monitoring and scrutiny. 

2.3 This report contains exempt appendices that are NOT FOR PUBLICATION by reason of paragraph 
3 of Schedule 12A of Part 1 of the Local Government Act 1972 because they contain commercial 
information. The public interest test has been applied to the information contained within these 
exempt appendices and it is considered that the need to retain the information as exempt outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing it 

 
 
 

 
 
 

33



3. TIMESCALES  
 
Is this a Major Policy Item/Statutory 
Plan?  

NO  If yes, date for Cabinet 
meeting   

N/A  

 

 
4. 

 
BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

 
 
4.1 

 

Peterborough Limited (P-Ltd) is wholly owned by Peterborough City Council and was formed as a 
Teckal compliant Local Authority Trading Company (LATCo). This means that the company is 
autonomous from the Council but does require a council appointed board and relies on the Council 
for guidance and input on strategic matters or important issues of policy. See background papers 
for company set up reports.  

4.2 In February 2019 Peterborough Limited operating as Aragon Direct Services commenced delivery 
of services for the Council, and private works to offset the cost of services to the Council. These 
include: 

 Recycling and Waste 

 Street Cleansing 

 Parks, Trees, and Grounds Maintenance 

 Passenger Transport 

 Building Cleaning  

 Vehicle Workshop 

 Property Services 

4.3 On the 1st October 2020 Vivacity Leisure Services were transferred into the P-Ltd. These services 
have continued to be operated under the Vivacity branding: 

 Reginal Pool and Fitness Centre 

 Lido 

 Vivacity Premier Fitness (VPF)  

 Hampton Leisure Centre 

 Bushfields Leisure Centre 
 Werrington Leisure Centre 

 Jack Hunt Pool 

 Swim Academy/School 

 Health and Wellbeing Services  

 Disability/Inclusive Sport and Leisure   

4.4 1st April 2022 Culture Services were transferred into the P-Ltd for the operation of:  

 Peterborough Museum 
 Libraries 

 Flag Fen 

4.5 The Peterborough Limited Annual Report 2022-2023 can be seen in Appendix 1. 

5. CONSULTATION 

5.1 No consultation is required at this time. 

6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES OR IMPACT  

6.1 The Company will continue to run its core services as efficiently as possible, as well as expanding 
its commercial services offering.  

The company welcomes feedback from the Shareholder Cabinet Committee, to incorporate into its 
new business plan, to present to the Committee in Q4 2023/24.   

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

34



7. REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATION 

 
7.1 It is recommended that the Shareholder Cabinet Committee note the information within the report 

and the progress made against the business plan to enable the company to move forward with the 
creation of the 2024–2029 Business Plan.    

8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 
8.1 

 
The Shareholder Cabinet Committee could choose to not Note this report but instead request 
alternative directions are explored for the Company. 

9. IMPLICATIONS 

 Financial Implications 

9.1 As set out in Appendix 1 section 6, the P-Ltd 2022/23 outturn position was £5,031 profit, a stronger 
performance than expected due to strong operational performance from the Aragon trading arm, as 
well as an above forecast performance by the Vivacity Leisure trading arm. This stronger 
performance helped to offset the additional inflationary pressure, including fuel cost rises and above 
budget pay award. 

The audited Company Accounts have been filed with Companies house and a link is provided 
below.  

There are no direct financial implications arising for Peterborough City Council from this report. 

 
Legal Implications 

9.2 Peterborough limited is a “Teckal” compliant company (advice is detailed in KEY/11JUN18/04 – 
Link found in background documents) and operates in accordance with Regulation 12 Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015. 

The recommendations within this report are in accordance with the functions of the Shareholder 
Cabinet Committee at Section 3.32, Scheme of Cabinet Delegations, Section 3 – Executive 
Functions of the Council’s Constitution. 

 Equalities Implications 

9.3 There are no negative equalities implications. 

 
10. 

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 
1985 
 

10.1 2022/23 Company Account - Companies’ House Filing History, “09 Aug 2023 Full accounts made 
up to 31 March 2023” 

https://find-and-update.company-information.service.gov.uk/company/11493249/filing-history  

Cabinet Meeting, 11th June 2018. Item 6 

https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=4142 

Cabinet Meeting, 17th December 2018. Item 4. 

https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=4214 

Shareholder Committee Meeting, 2nd March 2020. Item 5. 

https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=721&MId=4346&Ver=4 

 

11. APPENDICES 

11.1 Appendix 1 - Peterborough Limited Annual Report 2022-2023 

35

https://find-and-update.company-information.service.gov.uk/company/11493249/filing-history
https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=4142
https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=4214
https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=721&MId=4346&Ver=4


Appendix 2 – Exempted Section Not for Publication  

 
 
 
 

 

36



 

 

 
 

                                                            
 
 

Nursery Lane I Fengate I Peterborough I PE1 5BG 

01733 425425 I enquiries@aragondirect.co.uk I 

www.aragondirect.co.uk www.Vivacity.org           

Peterborough Limited  

(also trading as Aragon Direct Services & Vivacity Leisure) 

Company Number 11493249 I VAT Reg. 313958294      

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Peterborough Limited 

Annual Report  

2022-2023 

 

  

37

http://www.aragondirect.co.uk/
http://www.vivacity.org/


 

 
 

                                                            
  

Nursery Lane I Fengate I Peterborough I PE1 5BG 

01733 425425 I enquiries@aragondirect.co.uk I 

www.aragondirect.co.uk www.Vivacity.org           

Peterborough Limited  

(Trading as Aragon Direct Services & Vivacity Leisure) 

Company Number 11493249 I VAT Reg. 313958294      
 

 

  

 

Content  

 

1. Introduction ................................................................................................................................ 3 

2. Our Vision and Values................................................................................................................. 3 

2.1. Vision....................................................................................................................................... 3 

2.2. Values ...................................................................................................................................... 3 

3. Our Operating Context ............................................................................................................... 4 

3.1. Team Peterborough! ............................................................................................................... 5 

3.2. Our Company Structure .......................................................................................................... 5 

3.3. Culture Service ........................................................................................................................ 5 

4. Performance ............................................................................................................................... 5 

5. Commercial Activity .................................................................................................................... 7 

6. Our Financial Performance this Year .......................................................................................... 9 

7. Our Performance Against Our Business Plan ........................................................................... 10 

8. Gender Pay Gap ........................................................................................................................ 13 

9. Governance............................................................................................................................... 13 

10. What challenges does 2023/24 hold? .................................................................................. 14 

11. Conclusion ............................................................................................................................. 15 

 

  

38

http://www.aragondirect.co.uk/
http://www.vivacity.org/


 

 
 

                                                            
  

Nursery Lane I Fengate I Peterborough I PE1 5BG 

01733 425425 I enquiries@aragondirect.co.uk I 

www.aragondirect.co.uk www.Vivacity.org           

Peterborough Limited  

(Trading as Aragon Direct Services & Vivacity Leisure) 

Company Number 11493249 I VAT Reg. 313958294      
 

 

  

1. Introduction 

Peterborough Limited (P-Ltd) is now coming to the end of its first Business Plan phase (2020-

2023) following four full years of trading. We started on the ground services in February 2019 
and have been growing in size and scope since. Our purpose is to make Peterborough the best 

place we can, and ultimately aid making Peterborough residents happier. We have further 
ambitions to grow and become an established part of the Peterborough community.  

Our company delivers a diverse range of interconnected services. Our staff have many skills, 
but we specialise in:  

 Making and keeping places and spaces special both in the natural and built environment.  

 Helping people stay or keep mentally and physically fit and healthy. 

 Making our heritage accessible for all.   

2022/23 was our fourth full year of operations, and the first year since the pandemic without 
lock-down restriction on our facilities.  It was an extremely busy year starting with the transfer 

of Library and Heritage services into the company. These were taken to ensure business 
continuity for Peterborough City Council and utilise the skills within the company to review 

services. The Lido was also opened for Easter following the success of the previous year, with 
the “Lido Light” timetable continuing through until the full summer season. This year also saw 

our leisure memberships recovery outstripping the national recovery following the pandemic, 
thanks to the significant focus we placed on the growth of our gym memberships and leisure 

outreach services. The Aragon services continued to drive efficient ways of working, as well as 
taking on more commercial works. This enabled the company to move away from the National 

Living Wage for all staff who had successfully completed their probation period, for the first 
time since its foundation. 

2. Our Vision and Values 

2.1. Vision 

In 2018 PCC set the vision for P-Ltd during its set up:  

Peterborough Limited’s vision is to support the aims of the Council in delivering 

high quality sustainable services in a socially responsible and environmentally 
friendly way.  

At the same time, it will maximise commercial opportunities that will provide 
funding for the Company, meaning reduced reliance on taxpayers’ funding that 

would in turn protect other valuable Council services 

This remains the Vision of the company. It clearly sets out the balance which we will try and 
strike between quality of service, positive environmental and social impact, and 
commercialisation. 

 

2.2. Values  

Pre-go live the Council set out values for the P-Ltd as:  

39

http://www.aragondirect.co.uk/
http://www.vivacity.org/


 

 
 

                                                            
  

Nursery Lane I Fengate I Peterborough I PE1 5BG 

01733 425425 I enquiries@aragondirect.co.uk I 

www.aragondirect.co.uk www.Vivacity.org           

Peterborough Limited  

(Trading as Aragon Direct Services & Vivacity Leisure) 

Company Number 11493249 I VAT Reg. 313958294      
 

 

  

 Staff: We will value staff, developing, promoting, and rewarding people in line with their 

performance. We will protect their health and safety, encourage their career development 
and participation and involvement in the future management of Peterborough Limited. 

 Ethics: We will maintain the highest ethical standards through our staff and for our 

customers. We will be accountable for our decisions and actions and endeavour to keep 
the promises we make. 

 Health & Safety: We will adopt the best Health & Safety practices and seek continually to 

improve them. We will have zero tolerance to non-compliance with Health & Safety policies 
and procedures by our employees. We will conduct our operating activities at our sites and 

in the public realm with the Health & Safety of the public, of visitors and of our employees 
in mind at all times. 

 The Environment: We will ensure that Peterborough is a clean, safe and hazard free place 

to live in, work in or visit. We will implement Circular Economy Thinking in the way we 
procure and operate, endeavouring to minimise negative environmental impacts whilst 

maximising positive ones, and endeavouring to ensure focus on priorities such as increasing 
recycling rates. 

 The Economy: Driven by “Localism,” we will have a positive impact on the economy, 

ensuring Peterborough is a place people wish to visit, stay in and live in. Our values will 
include supporting businesses and the commercial sector in realising their ambitions for 

the wider good. We will encourage them to spend with goods and service providers whose 
profits and wages paid contribute to the welfare of the City and its residents. 

 The Council’s / Residents’ money: We will ensure that every penny spent is spent well, 
endeavouring to provide value for money to the Council and our residents.  

As the company moves in 2023/24 to our new business plan we will work to review our Vision 
and Values to ensure they reflect the Company’s ambitions and ethos for the future.  We will 
look to align with the new Peterborough City Council’s Sustainable Future City Council Strategy 
2022-25 priorities:   

 The economy and inclusive growth 

 Places and communities 

 Prevention, independence and resilience 

 Creating a Sustainable Future City Council 

This will allow us to report on how we have supported the Council in is strategic ambitions.  

3. Our Operating Context 

P-Ltd is wholly owned by Peterborough City Council (PCC) and was formed as a Teckal compliant 
Local Authority Trading Company (LATCo). This means that the company is autonomous from 

the Council but does require a Council appointed board. The Company can trade with the wider 
market and does not need to rely solely on income from core services provided to the Council. 

40

http://www.aragondirect.co.uk/
http://www.vivacity.org/


 

 
 

                                                            
  

Nursery Lane I Fengate I Peterborough I PE1 5BG 

01733 425425 I enquiries@aragondirect.co.uk I 

www.aragondirect.co.uk www.Vivacity.org           

Peterborough Limited  

(Trading as Aragon Direct Services & Vivacity Leisure) 

Company Number 11493249 I VAT Reg. 313958294      
 

 

  

Our primary focus, however, must be on delivery back to the local authority, but we can trade 

with third parties up to 20% of our activities, helping to generate revenue to a degree. 

In February 2019 P-Ltd operating as Aragon Direct Services commenced delivery of some 
services for Peterborough City Council. Over the following months more services were 

transferred into the company. On 1st October 2020 following a request from PCC, P-Ltd 
transferred leisure services into the company. In March 2022 PCC requested that we transfer 

Library and Heritage (Culture) services into the Company. This took place on 1st April 2022.  

3.1. Team Peterborough! 

All elements of P-Ltd, be they Aragon, Culture Services or Vivacity are fully part of Team 

Peterborough. This means that, although we are a private company, everything we do is 
ultimately to make Peterborough the best place we can to help make its residents happier. This 

means that our business plan, and operating context closely aligns to the ambitions and 
strategic directions of PCC, as our shareholder. 

3.2. Our Company Structure 

The company structure is reflected below. It is split into 13 Business Units, in four divisions.  

 

The company at the end of 2022/23 employed 655 staff, with over 51% in Aragon.  

3.3. Culture Service  

On 1st April 2022 the business expanded again to take on culture services including, 
Peterborough Museum, Flag Fen and Peterborough Libraries. The company took on these 
services to give Peterborough City Council solid financial and operational data for future service 
provision to enable the reshaping of services. 

The transfer saw us welcome 88 new staff. Our new team have many new specialisms including 
literacy, heritage, teaching and exhibition and event management, along with complimenting 
skills relating to staff and building management, catering, customer service, finance and IT.  

4. Performance 

This year the company has performed strongly both financially in service delivery and through 
social value through a diverse range of interconnected services to Peterborough residents. Our 

successes this year have been down to the hard work and dedication of our staff. These include: 

41

http://www.aragondirect.co.uk/
http://www.vivacity.org/


 

 
 

                                                            
  

Nursery Lane I Fengate I Peterborough I PE1 5BG 

01733 425425 I enquiries@aragondirect.co.uk I 

www.aragondirect.co.uk www.Vivacity.org           

Peterborough Limited  

(Trading as Aragon Direct Services & Vivacity Leisure) 

Company Number 11493249 I VAT Reg. 313958294      
 

 

  

 

 
 

 

Co llecting 7 .15 mill io n wheel ed b ins  Ov er 100, 00 Chil dren's Swim l esso ns 
a ttended 

Ov er 252,000 book loans made thro ugh 
o ur Lib ra r ies 

 
  

Transporting 674children to a nd f rom 
scho o l  ea ch da y 

Ov er 610,000 v isits to o ur sports centres 
a nd p o o l s 

Cl earing over 10,000 il l ega l  f l yt ip s  

   

Ov er 80,000 visits to  Peterb oro ugh 
Museum a nd Fl a g Fen 

1, 259 statuary water tests carr ied o ut in 
schools, community, and Council  f a cil it ies  

Pl anting o v er 4 , 400 new trees a nd 
ma intain ing a nd surv ey o v er 20, 000 

ex ist ing trees 

In addition to our week in week out front-line service delivery other notable successes include: 

 Transfer of culture services – The smooth transfer of culture services and the getting under 
the skin of their financial impact of the services and staff deployment.  

 Tree Project – Following a successful bid with PCC, £99K of funding was received from 

Treescape for tree planting. The planting programme incorporated a mix of replacement 
trees and new woodland planting. Standard trees, feathered trees and whips were all 
planted.  

 Driver Training – An ongoing programme to upskill staff has been highly successful to train 
Class 2 (Recycling and Waste) and PSV (Passenger transport) drivers. This year nine drivers 
have been trained and passed their test with four more still in training. This has, not only 
increased resilience but has also improved staff retention.  

42

http://www.aragondirect.co.uk/
http://www.vivacity.org/


 

 
 

                                                            
  

Nursery Lane I Fengate I Peterborough I PE1 5BG 

01733 425425 I enquiries@aragondirect.co.uk I 

www.aragondirect.co.uk www.Vivacity.org           

Peterborough Limited  

(Trading as Aragon Direct Services & Vivacity Leisure) 

Company Number 11493249 I VAT Reg. 313958294      
 

 

  

 VPF Café refurb – A refurbishment of the café facility at Vivacity Premier Fitness, including 

the removal of walls, has brought light and openness into the site reception, giving a better 
impression to potential new members.  It has also enabled new grab and go functions for 

customers and trialling of new menu options.  

 Netfit – The expansion of our women’s health and wellbeing scheme “Netfit” has now 
completed Season 5. Over 80 ladies completed this season and, as it continues to prove 

popular, Season 6 will be adding an additional team to allow more ladies to sign up for the 
sessions. One of the newly appointed referees has added support sessions in for the ladies 

to help improve their mental health. Scheme users are also taking a coaching course to 
expand their skills and develop the programme further. The scheme was initially funded 
through a bid to the “this girl can” campaign but is now self-funding.   

 Move away from National Living Wage – For the first time since its foundation the 
company paid above the national living wage for all staff who had successfully completed 

their probation period, getting closer to its ambition of paying the Real Living Wage.  

 Performance and Development Review programme – In the second full year the company 
PDR programme was carried out for all staff. This ensured all staff had a review of the 

previous year’s performance, and targets were set for the next year, and training needs 
discussed.  Eight nominations were selected to be placed on management training as part 

of our “Rising Stars” programme. The top 5% of staff received the Awesome Achievement 
Award, and a £50 voucher as a small thank you gesture, following on from a moderation 

session across the whole company. 

 Volunteer Programme – A project to create a new volunteer agreement and standardise 
all volunteer processes across the company, including logging hours and recording 

interests, was completed. This will give us greater ability to advertise for volunteers, 
onboard them, support them and give us greater standing when bidding for funding. By the 

end of the year we had 140 volunteers who carried out 450 volunteer hours a month.   

 Lido Dog Swim – The end of the summer saw the second year where we held the end of 
season Lido Dog Swim. The sell-out event saw four legged and two legged swimmers take 

to the water. Not only did our canine customers enjoy showing off their doggy paddle, but 
also enjoyed puppuccino’s and other treats. The event gained great positive media 

coverage, locally and regionally.  

5.  Commercial Activity   

P-Ltd are here not just to deliver our core contract work, but also to gain more work 
commercially to support the business. This work can come from: 

i. PCC itself where we have taken on work which would have been given to a fully 
external provider such as catering for citizen ceremonies or commercial waste 
collections. 

ii. The wider Team Peterborough family such as carrying out grounds maintenance 

work on behalf of Milestone on highways projects. 

43

http://www.aragondirect.co.uk/
http://www.vivacity.org/


 

 
 

                                                            
  

Nursery Lane I Fengate I Peterborough I PE1 5BG 

01733 425425 I enquiries@aragondirect.co.uk I 

www.aragondirect.co.uk www.Vivacity.org           

Peterborough Limited  

(Trading as Aragon Direct Services & Vivacity Leisure) 

Company Number 11493249 I VAT Reg. 313958294      
 

 

  

iii. Work done for full external customers such as our building cleaning contracts to 

businesses.  

It is only the last work which falls into our 20% Teckal threshold, but all are commercial ly gained.  

The table below shows the Teckal work carried out since the company commenced operations. 

Teckal is assessed, however, on a 3-year rolling basis, as highlighted in the last column.   

 

The current rolling rate is 93% which gives the company headroom to further expand its Teckal 
trading and gain further external revenue. 

The wider commercial work which P-Ltd did in 2022/23 totalled £3.4 million. This was spread 

across all parts of the business but was concentrated in Aragon, as the chart below shows . 

 

 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 
Rolling 3 

Year 

Total Revenue  £112K   £14,314K   £18,607K   £22,258K   £26,403K   £67,269K  

Total Shareholder 
Derived Revenue 

 £91K  £13,359K   £17,459K   £20,364K   £24,957K   £62,780K  

Total External Derived 
Revenue 

 £20K   £955K   £1,149K   £1,894  £1,446K   £4,489 

Teckal Level (%) 82% 93% 94% 91% 95% 93% 

44

http://www.aragondirect.co.uk/
http://www.vivacity.org/


 

 
 

                                                            
  

Nursery Lane I Fengate I Peterborough I PE1 5BG 

01733 425425 I enquiries@aragondirect.co.uk I 

www.aragondirect.co.uk www.Vivacity.org           

Peterborough Limited  

(Trading as Aragon Direct Services & Vivacity Leisure) 

Company Number 11493249 I VAT Reg. 313958294      
 

 

  

This is further split out in the pie chart below, which shows that Property Management and 

Parks Trees and Open Spaces (PTOS) have secured the most elected, brokered or external 
commercial works into the company.   

 

P-Ltd is currently working on its 2024-2029 business plan, where it will set out its plans to 
expand its commercial work further. This includes the hard launch of our new commercial 

recycling and waste service which is currently running but has recently recruited a Sales Lead 
to expand the services and gain new business.  

The profitable outturn figure in 2022/23 (see section 7) means that the company now has three 
years of accounts filed with Companies House which show profitability. This is often a minimum 

requirement for working with some companies, charities and public bodies. Previous bids for 
some contracts with Academy schools have been unsuccessful due to not having the three years 
of profitability. As such this is another positive step forward to gain more commercial work.  

6. Our Financial Performance this Year 

Our 2022/23, outturn position was £5,031 profit, this was a stronger performance than 
expected due to strong operational performance from the Aragon trading arm, as well as an 
above forecast performance of the Vivacity Leisure trading arm. This stronger performance 

helped to offset the additional inflationary pressure, including fuel cost rises and above budget 
pay award.  

 
P-Ltd 

2022/23 
£,000 

45

http://www.aragondirect.co.uk/
http://www.vivacity.org/


 

 
 

                                                            
  

Nursery Lane I Fengate I Peterborough I PE1 5BG 

01733 425425 I enquiries@aragondirect.co.uk I 

www.aragondirect.co.uk www.Vivacity.org           

Peterborough Limited  

(Trading as Aragon Direct Services & Vivacity Leisure) 

Company Number 11493249 I VAT Reg. 313958294      
 

 

  

 

Our 2022/23, outturn position was a profit of £5K against a forecasted loss within our business 
plan of £217K. This ongoing positive performance has kept a solid cashflow position and 
ensured ongoing stability of the company.   

7. Our Performance Against Our Business Plan 

Our 2019 – 2023 business plan set our focus in three main areas to move the business forward.  

 

 

Revenue  

TOTAL £26,403 
 

Cost  

Staffing Related Costs £13,221 

Subcontractors £4,970 

Materials  £1,207 

Plant Hire £190 

Vehicle Costs £1,728 

Property Costs                                                                                                                                                    £3,439 

Communications £62 

Other Costs  £1,499 

Financing Costs £75 

TOTAL £26,391 
 

Gross Margin (Profit)/-Loss (£12) 

Gross Margin % -0.00% 

Total Depreciation and Amortisation £7 

 

 (Profit)/-Loss Pre-Tax (£5) 

46

http://www.aragondirect.co.uk/
http://www.vivacity.org/


 

 
 

                                                            
  

Nursery Lane I Fengate I Peterborough I PE1 5BG 

01733 425425 I enquiries@aragondirect.co.uk I 

www.aragondirect.co.uk www.Vivacity.org           

Peterborough Limited  

(Trading as Aragon Direct Services & Vivacity Leisure) 

Company Number 11493249 I VAT Reg. 313958294      
 

 

  

The tasks and their status to deliver against the three main areas can be seen below as at March 

2023. As can be seen good progress has been made against our three-year priorities. 60% are 
now completed, with 33% in progress and many nearing completion. Elements which sit around 

benchmarking performance, reviewing best practice, and looking at KPIs are now nearing 
completion. In 2022/23 a new performance dashboard system was introduced for all business 
units. Each service area now has a singular performance hub which holds monthly information 
on service delivery, staffing, finance, and health and safety. This data is now feeding into the 
next corporate business plan. 

Progress against their status is marked as per the key below:  

 

Key 

 Complete and/or now ongoing  

 In Progress 

 Not Started  

 

 

 

 

47

http://www.aragondirect.co.uk/
http://www.vivacity.org/


 

 

 
 

                                                            
  

Nursery Lane I Fengate I Peterborough I PE1 5BG 

01733 425425 I enquiries@aragondirect.co.uk I 

www.aragondirect.co.uk www.Vivacity.org           

Peterborough Limited  

(also trading as Aragon Direct Services & Vivacity Leisure) 

Company Number 11493249 I VAT Reg. 313958294      

 

 

  

  

48

http://www.aragondirect.co.uk/
http://www.vivacity.org/


 

 
 

                                                            
 
 

Nursery Lane I Fengate I Peterborough I PE1 5BG 

01733 425425 I enquiries@aragondirect.co.uk I 

www.aragondirect.co.uk www.Vivacity.org           

Peterborough Limited  

(Trading as Aragon Direct Services & Vivacity Leisure) 

Company Number 11493249 I VAT Reg. 313958294      
 

 

  

8. Gender Pay Gap  

The Company has calculated its gender pay gap statistics for the last financial year. The gender pay 

gap or gender wage gap is the average difference between the remuneration for men and women 
who are working. Gender pay gap data sets out the difference in average pay of all women 

compared to the average pay of all men within the company, regardless of type of work or level of 
work done. It also does not consider if staff are full time, part time, set hours or Zero hours.  

P-Ltd has a Gender Pay Gap +0.02% in favour of Men. A positive figure indicates a pay gap in favour 
of men and a negative figure indicates a gap in favour of women. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

The mean gender pay gap is virtually zero which is a very positive position to be in as a company. 

The Median pay for women, however, is slightly lower by approximately 1.4%. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Our gender pay gap will be reported to government in line with their timescales. 

9.  Governance  

During the year, the Board of directors have continued to oversee and direct the company. Our 
interaction with our shareholder has also continued, both via PCC’s Shareholder Committee and 

through our Partnership and Contract meetings. Documents for the Shareholder Committee can be 
found at: 

https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=721 

The company had two changes in Directors in 2022/23, the details of which can be found at: 

https://find-and-update.company-information.service.gov.uk/company/11493249/officers  

The Company had its accounts for year ended 31 March 2023 externally audited in May 2023 and 
filed with Companies House in August 2023.  

  

Female 

Staff 

Total 

Males  

Staff Total     

Female 

Mean 

Hourly 

Rate 

Male 

Mean 

Hourly 

Rate 

Female 

Median 

Hourly 

Rate 

Male 

Median 

Hourly 

Rate 

Gender 

Pay Gap 

(Mean) 

286 378 £12.33 £12.33 £10.46 £10.60 +0.02% 

 Female  Males  
Female 

%  

Male 

% 

Upper Quartile 69 97 52% 48% 

Upper Middle Quartile 64 102 38% 61% 

Lower Middle Quartile 88 78 53% 47% 

Lower Quartile 65 101 39% 61% 

49

http://www.aragondirect.co.uk/
http://www.vivacity.org/
https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=721
https://find-and-update.company-information.service.gov.uk/company/11493249/officers


 

 
 

                                                            
 
 

Nursery Lane I Fengate I Peterborough I PE1 5BG 

01733 425425 I enquiries@aragondirect.co.uk I 

www.aragondirect.co.uk www.Vivacity.org           

Peterborough Limited  

(Trading as Aragon Direct Services & Vivacity Leisure) 

Company Number 11493249 I VAT Reg. 313958294      
 

 

  

10. What challenges does 2023/24 hold?  

Moving into 2023/24 the key challenges which the business will manage and risks identified by the 

business are:  

 

 Labour Market –2022/23 saw continued stagnation of supply in the labour market, especially 
for roles where evening and weekend work is required, such as leisure centres. As more jobs 

nationally move to be able to be done remotely, the company as a front-line, in person service 
delivery, will need to track trends in both employment and mechanisation.  The company 

continues to work with our recognised Unions to negotiate the 2023/24 pay award, with an 
ambition to move the company to the real living wage.  

 Inflation and Cost of Living – The ongoing impact of inflation reduces the purchasing power of 

the business especially when combined with the cost-of-living crisis. This means that there is 
not always the ability to increase prices to the market, without a loss of customer base. As such 

reviews will continue to be carried out, service by service on pricing and product purchases. The 
main review for customer pricing will be held in August for implementation (if applicable) in 

September.  

 Utility and fuel costs - The current cost of utilities and fuel will continue to pose challenges into 
2023/24. These are being mitigated in part with fuel and energy efficiency reviews which are 

taking active steps to reduce usage and thus cost. Financial forecasts have been updated to 
reflect the known higher costs. The end of 2022/23 did see a dip in unit rate costs of diesel, it is 

expected, however, that costs may rise again later in 2023.  

 Supply chains delay – The current rates of inflation, and the impacts that global events have 
had on supply chains will be continually managed closely, to ensure a management of both 

costs and expectations.  

 Equality and Diversity – At Peterborough Limited we are committed to making our work 
environment welcoming to everyone. We wish to encourage diversity amongst our staff and 
ensure that our jobs are attractive and accessible to as wide a group as possible. We hope that 
our work force is a reflection of the communities which we serve.  To help us achieve this in 
April 2023 P-Ltd carried out our first equality and diversity survey. We hope to carry out a survey 
each year to enable us monitor how we are doing, let us know where we have good 
representation and where we don’t. It also helps us plan better when it comes to changing 
facilities, mess rooms, toilets, uniform etc. Each year we will ask staff to return the anonymous 

form, to keep a track of our statistics across the company. The key areas which are measured 
and monitored are around gender, race, nationality, marital or civil partnership status, religion 

or belief, sexual orientation, gender reassignment, disability or age. No Staff were obliged to 
answer the questions, but we encourage staff to return by enabling staff to nominate their 

favourite charity, for a donation which related to number of surveys returned. There was also 
an individual prize draw which all those who completed the survey could enter (names kept 
separate from their survey answer).    

 Training and development – The company will further expand its formal and informal training 
and development program. This will help us build on strengths and address deficiencies in 

50

http://www.aragondirect.co.uk/
http://www.vivacity.org/


 

 
 

                                                            
 
 

Nursery Lane I Fengate I Peterborough I PE1 5BG 

01733 425425 I enquiries@aragondirect.co.uk I 

www.aragondirect.co.uk www.Vivacity.org           

Peterborough Limited  

(Trading as Aragon Direct Services & Vivacity Leisure) 

Company Number 11493249 I VAT Reg. 313958294      
 

 

  

knowledge or skills or improve resilience where specialism is resting with one or two individuals. 

A program of bite size training in HR and finance has started, with feedback from courses earlier 
in the year being used to develop the next wave of courses. New apprentices in Property and 

Leisure have also been hired.  

 Quality Management System (QMS) – P-Ltd is developing a company wide QMS to ensure that 
all business processes are documented, managed and regularly reviewed. This will aid bringing 

together processes which have been brought across from different organisations and ensuring 
consistency with processes which are already implemented across the company. An accredited 

system will also improve the Company’s ability to bid for external commercial works.     

 New Business Plan – The development and adoption of our next business plan will be essential 
in setting the future direction for the Company. The process to create the next Company 

Business Plan is underway and it is expected that it will be approved by March 2024. It is 
anticipated the new Business Plan will set out the Company’s road map from 2024 to 2029 but 

may allow for a mid-point refresh. The Company is very different from when it started operation 
in 2019.  It has become financially stable, paid back a significant amount of its setup loan, 
expanded to cover more services for PCC, expanded commercial works and moved away from 
paying the National Living Wage. All of this has come about whilst working to be as efficient and 
effective as possible. The Company is very proud with the progress, but also knows there is still 
lots still to do.  The Business Plan will set the exciting next steps in our journey.  

 

11.Conclusion 

2022/23 was a year of stabilisation for the Company. The Company continued to be profitable in 
2022/23, against a forecasted loss, which is once again due to the hard work and dedication of our 
staff. We made good inroads into moving away from the national living wage towards the real living 
wage and will try to keep this momentum up in 2023/24.  

Our challenge in 2023/24 will be balancing the pressure of inflation, and cost of living crisis with the 
need to deliver critical services for the people of Peterborough and sell both business to business 

and business to customer servicers, directly. Spring 2023 has seen the start the process for the next 
company business plan, and the next chapter for us.  

51

http://www.aragondirect.co.uk/
http://www.vivacity.org/


This page is intentionally left blank

52



Document is Restricted

53

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Updated: August 2023 

   
 

Shareholder Cabinet Committee Work Programme 2023/24 

 

Meeting Date Item Comments 

12 June 2023 
 

Deadline for Exempt Information 
Notice: 5 May 2023 
 

Draft Report: 24 May 2023 
Final Report: 31 May 2023 

Guidance for Member and Officers who Serve on 
Outside Bodies  
 
Lead Officer - Rochelle Tapping 

 

 Peterborough Investment Partnership 
 
Lead Officer - Adrian Chapman 

 

 University Phase 3 – Recommendation to Cabinet 
 
Lead Officer – Adrian Chapman 

 

   

11 September 2023 
 
Deadline for Exempt Information 
Notice: 11 August 2023 
 

Draft Report: 23 August 2023 
Final Report: 30 August 2023 

Medesham Homes 

 

Lead Officer – Adrian Chapman 

Jon Sawyer (PCC Rep) to attend 

 Peterborough Limited 
 
Lead Officer - Adrian Chapman 
 

 

   

55



 
 

Updated: August 2023 

   
 

6 November 2023 
 
Deadline for Exempt Information 
Notice: 6 October 2023 
 

Draft Report: 18 October 2023 
Final Report: 25 October 2023 

  

 

26 February 2024 

 
Deadline for Exempt Information 
Notice: 26 January 2024 
 

Draft Report: 7 February 2024 
Final Report: 14 February 2024 

Peterborough HE Property Company  
 
Lead Officer - Adrian Chapman 
 

 

 

56


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 12 June 2023
	5 Medesham Homes
	Item 5. Medesham Homes - Appendix 1

	6 Peterborough Limited Update
	Item 6. Appendix 1 P-Ltd Annual Report 2022-23
	Item 6. Appendix 2 EXEMPT ANNEX - SH Commitee Report

	7 Shareholder Cabinet Committee workprogramme

